
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

12 March 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Policy and Organisation Board
DATE: 20 March 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

MICHAEL LAWTHER
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Furlong (ex-Officio))
Councillor Hook (Chairman)

Councillor Burgess (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Foster-Reed

Councillor Hicks
Councillor Hylands
Councillor Jessop
Councillor Murphy
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Philpott

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Policy and Organisation Board
20 March 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 5 
FEBRUARY 2019 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 18th March 2019.  The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Monday, 18th March 2019).

6.  CROSS REFERENCE FROM THE STANDARDS AND 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE: EY - AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

A cross reference from the Standards and Governance Committee 
held on Wednesday 13 February 2019.

7.  PROPOSED RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION POLICY Part II

The purpose of the report is to seek Members’ approval for the 
implementation of a Policy on Recruitment and Retention of staff in 
relation to Market Supplement Payments (the “Policy”).

Head of HR  

8.  2019 PAY AWARD Part II

Gosport Borough Council (GBC) created its own local pay 
agreement in 2005. This report seeks Members approval, to enable 
GBC to apply the second year of the National Joint Council (NJC) 

Head of HR 



Policy and Organisation Board
20 March 2019

pay award.  In order for this to take effect, it is required to step away 
from the local pay arrangements and remove a number of spinal 
column points.

9.  RETIREMENT AWARDS Part II

The council’s Long Service Awards Policy recognises staff who are 
made redundant or retire with 20 or more years’ service.  Staff 
receive an engraved medallion and a gift of their choice to the value 
of £15 for each completed year of service.  The policy needs to be 
reviewed due to the fact that these awards do not meet the HM 
Revenue and Customs criteria for exemption from a tax charge.

Head of Payroll 

10.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Policy and Organisation Board
5 February 2019

1

A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
WAS HELD ON 5 FEBRUARY 2019

Councillors Bateman, Burgess, Carter, Chegwyn, Mrs Cully, Foster-Reed, Hook, Mrs Hook 
(Substituting for Philpott), Hylands, Miss Kelly (Substituting for Hicks), Murphy, Pepper and 
Scard (Substituting for Jessop)

42. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillors Hicks, Jessop and Philpott. 

43. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Hylands declared a pecuniary interest in agenda item 7 as a business owner in 
the Borough. 

44. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD HELD ON 21 NOVEMBER 2018 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 21st November 2018 be signed as 
a true and correct record. 

45. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

46. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

47. FORMER COUNCILLOR PETER EDGAR MBE - HONORARY FREEMAN OF THE 
BOROUGH 

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Executive setting out proposals for Former 
Councillor Peter Edgar MBE to be conferred the Title of Honorary Freeman of the Borough.

Members advised that they were pleased to support the recommendation and paid tribute 
to the fact that Peter Edgar’s service extended far wider than the work he had undertaken 
on the Council. 

RESOLVED: It is recommended that, in accordance with Section 249(5) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and in recognition of his eminent services to the people and 
Borough of Gosport over many years, the Board request that an Extraordinary Council 
Meeting be called, to confer the Title of Honorary Freeman of the Borough to Peter Edgar 
MBE.

Agenda Item 3



Policy and Organisation Board
5 February 2019

2

48. BUSINESS RATES RETAIL DISCOUNT 

Councillor Hylands declared a pecuniary interest, left the room and took no further 
part in the discussions or voting thereon.

Consideration was given to a report of the Borough Treasurer to consider the proposed 
additions to the Council’s Discretionary Rate Relief Policy relating to the Retail Discount 
announced in the Autumn Budget by the Government. 

Members welcomed the proposal from central government and welcomed the boost it 
would provide business owners in the Borough. 

Members hoped that upon the conclusion of the 2 year period the government take notice 
of the business needs and extend the discount. 

RESOLVED: That The Discretionary Rate Relief Policy relating to Retail Discount as 
detailed in Appendix A.

49. NEW POST OF NEIGHBOURHOOD OPERATIONS MANAGER 

Consideration was given to the Head of Housing seek members’ approval to create a new 
post of Neighbourhood Operations Manager. 

The Board was advised that the post had been evaluated and had been scored as a grade 
12. 

The Head of Housing advised that she was confident that the housing options team would 
manage any issues that resulted from the changes and that staff would benefit from peer to 
peer support. 

Members welcomed the improvement to the Housing Service following the review and 
welcomed the proposal and the support it offered to the Head of Housing.

RESOLVED: The creation of the post of Neighbourhood Operations Manager be approved. 

50. TUC DYING TO WORK CHARTER 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Human Resources requesting that 
consideration be given to  whether Gosport Council should sign up to the TUC 'Dying to 
Work' charter and what additional actions, if any, it would need to carry out to comply with 
the charter.

Members welcomed that the proposal would show a commitment to staff in times of need. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that there would not need a 
change to staff contracts to implement the charter. 

RESOLVED: That 

P&O Board is recommended to agree that:



Policy and Organisation Board
5 February 2019

3

i. Gosport should sign up to the TUC charter since the charter largely reflects our 
current practices.

ii. In meeting our commitment to the charter, continue the current practice of 
investigating with an eligible employee which option under the pension scheme 
would be most financially beneficial. In some cases, this could mean retiring the 
employee on grounds of ill-health where this is the best option for them.

iii. As part of the charter, state that under an organisational change process a 
member of staff with a terminal illness could still be made redundant. However, 
as with our current practice, redundancy will only be actioned once all other 
options have been exhausted

51. DISABILITY CONFIDENT INITIATIVE 

Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Human Resources advising P&O 
Board  about the Disability Confident standard, and seek members' approval to 
request accreditation under the scheme.

Members welcomed additional provision to make the Council a considerate employer 
to those with disabilities.

Members were advised that accreditation at differing levels was a staged process and 
to achieve level 3 would require investment in resources. 

Members welcomed that the Civic Wing toilets were being refurbished to include a 
disabled toilet facility. 

RESOLVED: That immediate accreditation be sought to be a Level 1: Disability Confident 
Committed Employer as described.

52. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.17 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



1

GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL

 CROSS REFERENCE

TO: POLICY AND ORGANISATION BOARD
20 MARCH 2019

FROM: STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
13 FEBRUARY 2019

TITLE: EY – Audit Plan 2018/19

AUTHOR: KEVIN SUTER 

Attached is a copy of the Audit Plan that was considered by the 
Standards and Governance Committee on the 13 February 2019 together 
with the Minute extract and Resolution 

RECOMMENDATION:  the Audit Plan for 2018/19 be recommended to the 
Policy and Organisation Board as those charged with governance.

RESOLOUTION: 

 That the Audit Planning Report be reviewed and the risks be and 
areas of focus we have identified, and the auditor’s planned 
response to them be noted. 

 the Audit Planning Report for 2018/19 be recommended to the 
Policy and Organisation Board as those charged with governance.

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



2

MINUTE EXTRACT 

33. EY – AUDIT PLANNING REPORT 2017-18

Consideration was given to Audit Planning Report 2018/19. The Committee was advised 
that the report detailed matters that were required to be brought to the attention of the 
Committee and that there were no fundamental changes to the risks identified from the 
prior year, and that the new accounting standards brought in as part of the new CIPFA 
code was the only significant new area of focus. 

The Committee was advised that pages 9 and 10 of the report set out the identified risks of 
material misstatement arising from fraud or error. The first of these, the risk of 
management override, is identified on all audits, as the potential for management to 
override the system of internal control is present at all entities. 

The Committee was advised that the valuation of land and buildings was highlighted as 
they were subject valuation changes and that management was required to make 
estimations as part of the valuation process. 

In answer to a Member’s question, it was clarified that the pension liability was estimated 
for Gosport. 

The Committee was advised that the auditors’ planning work relating to the Value for 
Money conclusion was detailed on page 14 of the report and that page 16 detailed the 
materiality, set at £1.29million, representing 2% of the Council’s prior year expenditure on 
the provision of services. 

In answer to a Member’s question the Board was advised that the valuation rate of 
buildings was the notional rebuild value for certain types of asset, and that lease and bad 
debt work was undertaken as part of normal audit work. 

The Committee was advised that it was expected that the revised schedule of work arising 
from the earlier statutory deadlines introduced in 2017/18 would be met. 

RESOLVED: That

 The Committee note the risks and areas of focus identified in the Audit 
Planning Report 2018/19, and the planned response to them. 

 the Audit Planning Report 2018/19 be recommended to the Policy and 
Organisation Board as those charged with governance



This page is intentionally left blank



Gosport Borough
Council
Audit planning report
Year ended 31 March 2019

January 2019



2

28 January 2019

Dear Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Plan which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to provide the
Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the
2018/19 audit in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of
Audit Practice, the Statement of Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other
professional requirements. It is also to ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee/Board’s service expectations.

This plan summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council, and outlines our
planned audit strategy in response to those risks.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 13 February 2019 as well as understand whether there are other matters which
you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully

Kevin Suter

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Enc

Gosport Borough Council
Town Hall, High Street
Gosport
Hampshire PO12 1EB



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-
of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors
and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit
Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and management of Gosport Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board , and management of Gosport Borough Council those matters we are required to
state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy
& Organisation Board , and management of Gosport Borough Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our
2018/19 audit
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit
materiality04 Scope of our

audit05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit
timeline07 Independence08

Value for
Money Risks03

V
F
M



4

Overview of our 2018/19 audit
strategy01 01



5

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Misstatements due to fraud or error Fraud risk No change in risk or
focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud
because of its ability to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and
prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that would
otherwise appear to be operating effectively.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition, through
inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure

Fraud risk No change in risk;
refocused

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to
improper revenue recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified
by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that
auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by
the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have assessed the risk is most
likely to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure.

Valuation of Land and Buildings Other risk No change in risk or
focus

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment Properties
(IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts and are subject to
valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is
required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

Pension Liability Valuation Other risk No change in risk or
focus

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council
to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its
membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by
Hampshire County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and
therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their
behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of
management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

New accounting standards Other risk Increase in risk or
focus

The CIPFA Code of Practice for 2018/19 confirms that the local government
bodies will implement International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) 9 –
Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers this
year.

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Standards &
Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board with an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks
identified in the current year.



6

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£1.29m
Performance

materiality

£0.97m Audit
differences

£64.5k

Materiality has been set at £1.291m, which represents 2% of the prior years gross expenditure on provision of services.

Performance materiality has been set at £0.968m, which represents 75% of planning materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account and collection fund) greater than
£64.5k.  Other misstatements identified will be communicated to the extent that they merit the
attention of the Policy & Organisation Board.



7

Overview of our 2018/19 audit strategy

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

§ Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Gosport Borough Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 2019 and of the
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

§ Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

§ Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
§ Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
§ The quality of systems and processes;
§ Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and
§ Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council.



8

Audit risks02 01



9

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

We will:
• Identify fraud risks during the planning stages.
• Enquire of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in

place to address those risks.
• Understand the oversight given by those charged with governance of

management’s processes over fraud.
• Consider the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to

address the risk of fraud.
• Perform mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified

fraud risks, including testing of journal entries and other adjustments
in the preparation of the financial statements.

• Review accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
• Evaluate the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free
of material misstatements whether caused by
fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in
a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of
its ability to manipulate accounting records
directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We
identify and respond to this fraud risk on every
audit engagement.

Misstatements due to fraud or
error*

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued)

What will we do?

We will:
• Test PPE additions using lowered testing thresholds, to ensure they are

appropriately supported by documentary evidence, and that the
expenditure incurred and capitalised is clearly capital in nature; and

• Seek to identify and understand the basis for any significant journals
transferring expenditure from non-capital codes to PPE additions or
from revenue to capital codes on the general ledger at the end of the
year.

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that
revenue may be misstated due to improper
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which
states that auditors should also consider the risk
that material misstatements may occur by the
manipulation of expenditure recognition.

We have assessed that the risk is most likely to
occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of
revenue expenditure, as there is an incentive to
reduce expenditure which is funded from Council
Tax.

Risk of fraud in revenue and
expenditure recognition,
through inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure*

Financial statement impact

We have assessed that the risk of
fraud in revenue and expenditure
recognition is most likely to occur
through the inappropriate
capitalisation of revenue
expenditure. This would have the
impact of reducing revenue
expenditure and increasing
additions to Property, Plant and
Equipment.

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.



11

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings
The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Investment
Properties (IP) represent significant balances in the Council’s accounts
and are subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and
depreciation charges. Management is required to make material
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the
year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;
• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g.

floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre) and challenge the key
assumptions used by the valuers;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5
year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment
Property. We will also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have
occurred and whether these have been communicated to the valuers;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2018/19 to confirm that the remaining asset
base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and
• Test to confirm that accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial

statements.

Pension Liability Valuation
The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the
Council to make extensive disclosures within its financial statements
regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Hampshire County Council. The Council’s pension fund
deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this
liability be disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2018
this totalled £40 million. The information disclosed is based on the IAS
19 report issued to the Council by the actuary to the County Council.
Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and
judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake
the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 540 require us to
undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the
assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

We will:
• Liaise with the auditors of Hampshire County Council Pension Fund,  to obtain assurances

over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Gosport Borough Council;
• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Aon Hewitt) including the assumptions they

have used by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by the
National Audit Office for all Local Government sector auditors, and considering any
relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s
financial statements in relation to IAS19.

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures.



12

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus (continued)
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

IFRS 9 financial instruments
This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year and will change:

• How financial assets are classified and measured;
• How the impairment of financial assets are calculated; and
• The disclosure requirements for financial assets.

There are transitional arrangements within the standard; and the
2018/19 CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting provides
guidance on the application of IFRS 9.

We will:
• Assess the Council’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19;

• Consider the classification and valuation of financial instrument assets;
• Review new expected credit loss model impairment calculations for assets; and
• Check additional disclosure requirements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
This new accounting standard is applicable for local authority accounts
from the 2018/19 financial year.

The key requirements of the standard cover the identification of
performance obligations under customer contracts and the linking of
income to the meeting of those performance obligations.

The 2018/19 CIPFA Code of practice on local authority accounting
provides guidance on the application of IFRS 15 and includes a useful
flow diagram and commentary on the main sources of LG revenue and
how they should be recognised.

The impact on local authority accounting is likely to be limited as large
revenue streams like council tax, non domestic rates and government
grants will be outside the scope of IFRS 15. However where that
standard is relevant, the recognition of revenue will change and new
disclosure requirements introduced.

We will:
• Assess the Council’s implementation arrangements that should include an impact

assessment paper setting out the application of the new standard, transitional
adjustments and planned accounting for 2018/19.

• Consider application to the authority’s revenue streams, and where the standard is
relevant test to ensure revenue is recognised when (or as) it satisfies a performance
obligation; and

• Check additional disclosure requirements.



13

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M



14

Value for Money
Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money conclusion.

For 2018/19 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise
your arrangements to:

§ Take informed decisions;
§ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
§ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework
for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are already required
to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance statement.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant, which the Code of
Audit Practice defines as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would
be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of sufficient work to enable us to deliver a safe conclusion on
arrangements to secure value for money and enables us to determine the nature and extent of further work
that may be required. If we do not identify any significant risks there is no requirement to carry out further
work. We consider business and operational risks insofar as they relate to proper arrangements at both sector
and organisation-specific level.

Our risk assessment has therefore considered both the potential financial impact of the issues we have
identified, and also the likelihood that the issue will be of interest to local taxpayers, the Government and other
stakeholders.

This has resulted in the identification of no significant risks at the planning stage of our audit, but we will keep
this assessment under review and update the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation
Board as soon as possible if risks are identified during the remainder of our audit.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for
securing value for money

Informed
decision making

Working with
partners and
third parties

Sustainable
resource

deployment



15

Audit materiality04 01



16

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2018/19 has been set at £1.29m. This
represents 2% of the Council’s prior year gross expenditure on provision of services. It
will be reassessed throughout the audit process. We have set materiality using gross
revenue expenditure as our expectation is that users of the Council’s accounts are
focussed on how it uses its resources to provide services to local people. We have used
2% based on our assessment of the Council’s financial position, levels of public
interest, lack of planned reorganisations and sources of borrowing. We have provided
supplemental information about audit materiality in Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£64.5m
Planning

materiality

£1.29m

Performance
materiality

£0.97m
Audit

differences

£64.5k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at
£0.968m which represents 75% of planning materiality. The rationale for
using 75% is based on the anticipation of identifying few or no errors during
the audit. This expectation has been built on our experience of the Council
in prior years.

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account
and collection fund. Other uncorrected misstatements, such as
reclassifications and misstatements in the cashflow statement and
movement in reserves statement or disclosures, and corrected
misstatements will be communicated to the extent that they merit the
attention of the Committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective.

Specific materiality – We have also set a materiality of £1k for
remuneration disclosures, related party transactions, members’ allowances
and exit packages, which reflects our understanding that an amount less
than our materiality would influence the economic decisions of users of the
financial statements in relation to these areas.

Key definitions

We request that the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation
Board confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, these materiality and reporting
levels.



17

Scope of our audit05 01



18

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International Standards on Auditing (UK).

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we
will undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards
• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;
• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;
• Entity-wide controls;
• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and
• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code
• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and
• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy



19

Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves:
• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; and
• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2018/19 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit, as we have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit assurance required
to conclude that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Analytics:
We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These tools:
• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and
• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling techniques.
We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations for
improvement, to management and the Policy & Organisation Board.

Internal audit:
We will regularly meet with the Head of Internal Audit, and review internal audit plans and the results of their work. We will reflect the findings from these reports,
together with reports from any other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they raise issues that could have an impact on the financial
statements, the Narrative Statement or the Annual Governance Statement.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)



20

Earlier deadline for production of the financial statements

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 introduced a significant change in statutory deadlines from the 2017/18 financial year. From that year the timetable for the
preparation and approval of accounts will be brought forward with draft accounts needing to be prepared by 31 May and the publication of the accounts by 31 July.

These changes provide risks for both the preparers and the auditors of the financial statements:

• The Council now has less time to prepare the financial statements and supporting working papers. Risks to the Council include changes to the finance team during 2018/19.
• As your auditor, we have a more significant peak in our audit work and a shorter period to complete the audit. Risks for auditors relate to delivery of all audits within same

compressed timetable. Slippage at one client could potentially put delivery of others at risk.

To mitigate this risk we will require:
• good quality draft financial statements and supporting working papers by the agreed deadline;
• appropriate Council staff to be available throughout the agreed audit period; and
• complete and prompt responses to audit questions.

If you are unable to meet key dates within our agreed timetable, we will notify you of the impact on the timing of your audit, which may be that we postpone your audit until later
in the summer and redeploy the team to other work to meet deadlines elsewhere.

Where additional work is required to complete your audit, due to additional risks being identified, additional work being required as a result of scope changes, or poor audit
evidence, we will notify you of the impact on the fee and the timing of the audit. Such circumstances may result in a delay to your audit while we complete other work elsewhere.

To support the Council we will:
• Work with the Council to engage early to  facilitate early substantive testing where appropriate.
• Provide an early review on the Council’s streamlining of the Statement of Accounts where non-material disclosure notes are removed.
• Facilitate faster close workshops to provide an interactive forum for Local Authority accountants and auditors to share good practice and ideas to enable us all to achieve a

successful faster closure of accounts for the 2018/19 financial year.
• Work with the Council to improve the use of EY Client Portal, this will:

• Streamline our audit requests through a reduction of emails and improved means of communication;
• Provide on –demand visibility into the status of audit requests and the overall audit status;
• Reduce risk of duplicate requests; and
• Provide better security of sensitive data.

• Agree the team and timing of each element of our work with you.
• Agree the supporting working papers that we require to complete our audit.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy (continued)



21

Audit team06 01



22

Audit team

Audit team
Audit team structure:

Kevin Suter
Associate Partner
ksuter@uk.ey.com

David White
Manager

dwhite@uk.ey.com

Shabbir Hussain
Senior

shabbir.hussain@uk.ey.com

Working together with the Council

We are working together with officers to
identify continuing improvements in
communication and processes for the
2018/19 audit.

We will continue to keep our audit
approach under review to streamline it
where possible.

Shabbir Hussain has joined the audit as Senior. Shabbir has worked for EY for 5 years, leading teams across a range of clients.

Changes to the audit team



23

Audit team

Use of specialists
When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the
core audit team. The areas where either EY or third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings

Management’s valuation experts:

- Savills (UK) Limited as valuers for Housing Revenue Account properties

- Capita Property & Infrastructure as valuers for General Fund properties and investment properties.

Pensions disclosure PwC as consulting actuary appointed by the NAO, and EY internal pensions specialists
Aon Hewitt – Actuary to Hampshire Pension Fund

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and
available resources, together with the independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular
area. For example, we would typically perform the following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used;

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial statements.



24

Audit timeline07 01



25

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2018/19.
From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Standards & Governance Committee and Policy & Organisation Board and we will
discuss them with the Committee/Board Chairs as appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit committee timetable Deliverables

Planning:

Risk assessment and setting of scopes

Walkthrough of key systems and
processes

November/December

Risk assessment and setting of scopes January

February Standards & Governance Committee Audit Planning Report

Certification Report
Interim audit testing March Policy & Organisation Board Audit Planning Report

April

May

June

Year end audit

Audit Completion procedures

July Policy & Organisation Board Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates
August Annual Audit Letter



26

Independence08 01



27

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.
We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements , the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to
provide non-audit services that has been submitted.
We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period,
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY)
including consideration of all relationships between
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they
are considered to be effective, including any
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;
► Information about the general policies and process

within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.
► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply

more restrictive independence rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person,
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;
► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any

non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;
► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;
► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit

services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy;
► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms;

and
► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction



28

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats,
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services;
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writing, there are no long outstanding fees.
We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.
None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with
your policy on pre-approval. The ratio of non audit fees to audits fees is not permitted to exceed 70%.
At the time of writing, no non-audit services have been undertaken, therefore the current ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees is zero. No additional safeguards are
required.
A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance
with Ethical Standard part 4.
There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report.

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent
and the objectivity and independence of Kevin Suter, your audit engagement partner, and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Self review threats

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in
the financial statements.
There are no self review threats at the date of this report.

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.
There are no management threats at the date of this report.



29

Independence

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise.
There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Other communications
EY Transparency Report 2018

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained.
Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year ended 1 July 2018 and can be found here:
https://www.ey.com/uk/en/about-us/ey-uk-transparency-report-2018



30

Appendices09 01



31

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee
2018/19

Scale fee
2018/19

Final Fee
2017/18

£ £ £

Total Fee – Code work 40,844 40,844 53,044
Certification of claims and
returns (housing benefits) - - 14,121*

Total fees 40,844 40,844 67,165

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has published the fee scale for the audit of the 2018/19 accounts of opted-in principal local government and police bodies.

This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the requirements
of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work.

All fees exclude VAT

* The total includes a proposed scale fee variation of -£2,580 (amount to be returned to the Council), in relation to a reduction in work carried out in 2017/18 in
comparison with the year on which the scale fee was based (2015/16). This reduction in work was due to Council officers undertaking the initial case testing in
2017/18 (with re-performance by the audit team). The fee variation has been agreed with management but remains subject to agreement with PSAA.

Our 2018/19 Code work includes additional planned procedures highlighted in section two of this report to address the new accounting requirements of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers. As at the date of our planning report the Council is yet to evidence their assessment
of the impact of these standards, and so we cannot currently quantify the expected scale fee variation for these additional procedures. We will agree this with
management, depending on the identified impact of the new standards. Any additional fee will be subject to approval by the PSAA.

To obtain sufficient assurance over housing benefits expenditure and subsidy income in the Council’s financial statements, we will need to undertake some
elements of the work which also form part of the housing benefit subsidy claim certification process. This work would previously have been covered by the
certification fee and used additionally to provide assurance for the main audit. As we are no longer the reporting accountant for the Council’s subsidy claim, we
will need to consider the requirement for a scale fee variation to cover the performance of this work as part of the main audit for 2018/19.

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

► Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

► Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

► Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

► The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation to
the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and formal
objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.



32

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Standards & Governance Committee and  Policy & Organisation Board
of acceptance of terms of engagement as written in the engagement letter signed by both
parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from
the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit
• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
• Written representations that we are seeking
• Expected modifications to the audit report
• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Standards & Governance Committee and
Policy & Organisation Board.



33

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, including:
• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty
• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and

presentation of the financial statements
• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by
law or regulation

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods
• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected
• Corrected misstatements that are significant
• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Fraud • Enquiries of the Policy & Organisation Board to determine whether they have knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management
• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions
• Disagreement over disclosures
• Non-compliance with laws and regulations
• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Audit results report



34

Appendix B

Required communications with Those Charged with Governance (continued)
Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence
Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of
independence and objectivity such as:
• The principal threats
• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness
• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity

and independence

Audit planning report
Audit results report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations
• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

Consideration of laws and
regulations

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Policy & Organisation Board into possible instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that
the Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed
• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit
• Any non-audit work

Audit planning report
Audit results report



35

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.
• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Reading other information published with the financial statements, and reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our

understanding and the financial statements; and
• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that,
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements.

Materiality determines:
• The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: Policy &Organisation Board

Date of Meeting: 20th March 2019

Title: Proposed Recruitment and Retention Policy 

Author: Head of Human Resources 

Status: For Decision

Purpose

The purpose of the report is to seek Members’ approval for the implementation of a 
Policy on Recruitment and Retention of staff in relation to Market Supplement 
Payments (the “Policy”).

Recommendation

Approve the introduction of the Policy as detailed in the report following consultation 
with Unison and the Local Joint Steering Committee.

1. Background

1.1 The Council aims to recruit and retain the best possible staff with the skills, 
knowledge and experience needed to deliver excellent services and to meet 
its corporate objectives.

1.2 The Council is committed to the principles of equal pay for work of equal 
value and has introduced a job evaluation process to measure the relative 
values of all jobs.  However, there are times when the grading of a post 
results in an inability to successfully recruit or retain staff in particular posts.  
In such cases it may be appropriate to pay a market supplement in addition 
to the salary to ensure that such a post is filled.  Such a payment is lawful 
under the Equality Act 2010 where there is evidence to justify that market 
factors are the “material factor” for the post attracting a higher rate of pay 
than other posts graded similarly.

1.3 The appropriate application of this Policy will help to ensure that the Council 
retains the flexibility to award incentives to recruit and retain staff in areas 
where there are difficulties.  Where market conditions demand it, seek to 
award additional payments to achieve effective recruitment and retention in 
an externally competitive market.

2. Report

Agenda Item 7



2

2.1. The Policy (Appendix 1) outlines the process for reviewing the 
appropriateness of applying a market supplement payment to posts that are 
difficult to recruit or retain.

2.2. The proposed Policy is in accordance with the National Agreement on Pay 
and Conditions of Service (Green Book) requirements. Changes to policies 
have due regard to the ACAS code of practice and the Policy principles are 
Proportionate, Lawful, Accountable and Necessary.

2.3. The Trade Union has been consulted about the proposed Policy changes 
through the normal consultation process and has been provided with copies 
of the draft Policy. 

2.4. The Policy once adopted will be available to managers and staff via the 
infonet.

2.5. The Policy has been created following a recent recruitment difficulty in the 
Planning Service which has resulted in a Market Supplement Payment being 
applied in order to attract a suitable candidate. On the basis that this 
payment has been applied and in order to ensure a consistent application 
that will minimise equal pay risks across the Council; the proposed Policy 
outlines the process and methodology for undertaking pay analysis.  This will 
determine whether a Market Supplement Payment is applicable and how to 
determine the level of payment. It will also outline how the Market 
Supplement payments may be applied, i.e as a monthly payment, a retention 
payment or a combination of the two.

3. Conclusion

3.1 The recommendation is made to reflect changes in the organisation in the 
face of increasing recruitment difficulties for hard to fill posts, to streamline 
and simplify the process for ease of use and to ensure that employment 
issues continue to be managed with a transparent and consistent approach.

Financial Services comments: As described in the policy (Appendix 1), any additional 
costs will be met from existing cash limited budgets.  
Consequently, Heads of Service will be expected to 
design the delivery of their services within the overall cash 
limit available for their services, making equivalent savings 
where necessary. 

Legal Services comments: None

Crime and Disorder: N/A

Equality and Diversity: Complies with equal pay legislation and is not 
discriminatory in applying a market supplement to a post.

EIA: Preliminary EIA screening



3

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

N/A

Corporate Plan: N/A

Risk Assessment: N/A

Background papers: N/A

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendices: Appendix 1 Recruitment and Retention Policy
 

Report author/ Lead Officer: Jon Bell



This page is intentionally left blank



 

HR Policy 

 
 

 
Contents: 
 
Council Policy 
Introduction 
Key Principles 
Definitions 
Payment Calculation 
Application Process 
Stage 1: Investigating Recruitment and/or Retention Problems 
Stage 2: Analysing the Market Data 
Stage 3: Formal Consideration of the Case 
Review Stage 
Equality and Diversity Monitoring 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

ID  

Last Review Date Draft 12 Dec 2018 

Next Review Date  

 
Approval 
 

LJSC 
P & O Board 

Policy Owner HR 

Policy Author Anna Buxcey 

Advice & 
Guidance 

Please contact Human Resources 

Location 
 
Infonet 
 

Related 
Documents 

 

Scope This policy applies to all employees in Gosport Borough Council.  

RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION POLICY 
 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

Council Policy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1. Gosport Borough Council is committed to the principles of equal pay for 

work of equal value and is using the job evaluation scheme to measure the 
relative value of all jobs in its pay and grading structure. 
 

1.2. However, it is acknowledged that on occasion the total reward package 
determined by the council’s pay and grading system may not be consistent 
with reward packages offered to comparable posts in the wider labour 
market and that this could lead to recruitment and retention difficulties. 

 
1.3. In such circumstances, where there is a clear business need supported by 

objective market data the council will consider offering a recruitment and/or 
retention payment (R&R payments) in addition to the normal reward 
package for the post, in accordance with this scheme. 

 
1.4. There is no single solution to recruitment and retention problems as these 

vary by degree and intensity at different levels and in different parts of the 
organisation. This policy sets out to inform and remind what is available for 
use to enable the organisation to respond positively to the problem. It is 
probable that solutions will need to be mixed and matched to ensure that a 
successful outcome is obtained. 

 
1.5. It will be important to ensure that recruitment and retention arrangements 

do not create equal value/pay issues, do not corrupt the substantive grades 
and are not inflationary when the employment market changes. Therefore, 
there will be a need for corporate assessment and a review of all 
recruitment and retention applications at least every two years. 

 
1.6. The Council will require objective evidence (independent advice will be 

sought by Human Resources) based on analysis of the prevailing market 
position and trends before agreeing to award any R&R payments. 
Moreover, R&R payments will be reviewed and tested for continuing 
relevance and appropriateness at intervals of not more than two years from 
the date of the initial award and at least every two years thereafter. 

 
1.7. Where a review shows that the payment is no longer required or needs to 

change, the employee(s) will receive contractual notice of the change. 
 

1.8. R&R payments on top of basic salary will attract nationally negotiated pay 
awards.  

 A recruitment and retention policy which provides the ability to respond to 

the need to recruit and retain key staff will be applied within the authority. 

 This policy applies to all employees in Gosport Borough Council. 

 Recruitment and retention payments for senior posts (Section Heads) must 

be approved by the Deputy Chief Executive unless defined market sensitive 

payment rules are already in place. 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

1.9. All proposed solutions for recruitment and retention will be consulted and 
agreed with the Head of HR. 

 
1.10. The financing of recruitment and retention solutions will be contained within 

cash limited budgets. 
 
 
2. KEY PRINCIPLES 

 
2.1. It is the Council’s policy to make such payments only in exceptional 

circumstances and to follow a clear and consistent framework for the 
determination of any R&R payment, as this; 

 

 ensures the Council meets its obligations under equal pay legislation 
and maintains the overall integrity of its pay and grading structure by 
avoiding the creation of potentially unlawful pay disparities; 

 

 ensures payments are objectively justified i.e. genuine material factor; 
 

 allows payments to be considered only where a clear and demonstrable 
business need exists for a specific role; 
 

 ensures that other non-pay issues are fully explored before a 
recruitment and/or retention payment is considered; 
 

 supports payment where an objective assessment of appropriate 
evidence supports this approach and a rationale is recorded i.e. based 
on clearly evidenced recruitment or retention problems; 
 

 applies to existing as well as newly recruited employees in the relevant 
job; 
 

 ensures that the actual salary for the post and the R&R payments are 
clearly identified and shown as separate amounts on the contractual 
documentation and pay slip so that they can be justified if an equal pay 
issue arises; 
 

2.2. R&R payments should not only be considered in areas where it is difficult to 
recruit, but also when retention of staff is becoming increasingly difficult or 
problematic. However, when this is the case, it could be that there are many 
other reasons. For example, whether individuals are making full use of their 
skills, working conditions, career development, management training and 
development opportunities should also be explored. 
 

2.3. Before deciding to pay an R&R payment, managers need to be aware that 
making a payment to a specific group of staff can become a source of 
friction and can also undermine efforts to create team working and a fair 
reward system. It may also set precedents within and across services. It is 
important to remember that once the payment has been created, approved 
and implemented, it is very difficult to withdraw it without causing disruption 
to the workplace and the individuals involved and this in itself could lead to 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

retention issues. Managers should seek advice from the Principal HR 
Officer when considering implementing such a payment. 
 

2.4. The procedure will be followed whenever a case for an R&R payment is 
considered. 

 
 
3. DEFINITIONS 

 
3.1. Market Supplement Payment – is an amount paid on top of the base 

salary which brings the salary range in line with the external market for that 
particular post. Market Supplements can be paid to those posts or groups of 
posts that are experiencing recruitment and/or retention problems. Market 
Supplements will be paid in 12 equal monthly instalments as an allowance 
on top of the monthly basic salary. As the payment is a monthly allowance 
to reflect competitive market rates, the employee would not normally be 
required to repay the amount in the event of leaving the Council, or moving 
to another area within the Council. 
 

3.2. Recruitment Incentive Payment (Golden Hello) – is a one off lump sum 
payment, paid to new employees to encourage recruitment into areas 
deprived of specific skills and qualifications. The employee must agree to 
work for a minimum period of time (i.e. 2 years).  If the payment is made 
prior to the completion of specified timeframe and the employee leaves the 
post prior to completing the required length of service, the employee would 
be required to pay back a percentage of the total amount paid. 

 
3.3. Retention Payment (Golden Handcuff) – is a one off lump sum payment 

paid to existing employees who are already working in posts where a 
recruitment incentive payment is made to new employees to act as a 
retention payment.  If an employee leaves the post that carries this payment 
prior to the completion of specified timeframe after the payment is made, 
the employee will be required to repay a percentage of the total amount 
received. 

 
The Retention Payment may also be payable to existing staff working on 
time critical projects in order to retain the individuals key skills and 
knowledge until the project has reached fruition.  

 
3.4. Monthly Payment and Lump Sum Combination - a combination payment 

based on the market value for the post which is then split into monthly 
payments and a one off lump sum.  For example, if the market value of the 
role is £5,000 higher than base salary, £2,500 could be paid in a lump sum 
and £2,500 paid in 12 equal monthly instalments.  Should the employee 
leave prior to completing the relevant length of service they will be required 
to pay back the lump sum element of the payment.   

 
 This option gives greater flexibility in terms of the employee receiving a 

higher monthly payment with the advantage of a lump sum payment. This 
allows a "handcuff" agreement to tie the employee in for a pre-agreed 
period of time. 

 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

4. PAYMENT CALCULATION 
 
 The R&R payment will be calculated by determining the difference between 

the market rate and the highest SCP of the pay band. This means that 
when the employee reaches the top of the pay band, they will receive the 
market rate for their post.   

 
When recruiting for a post which attracts an R&R payment, the manager 
with assistance from Human Resources should offer the post on a lower 
SCP with the same R&R payment applied on top.  

 
 The employee should be appointed on the appropriate SCP within the band 

to take account of their skills, knowledge and experience as is the normal 
practice on appointment, however the R&R payment must remain the 
same. This allows for the individual to receive incremental increases until 
the top of the band is reached. It also allows for a pay differential for 
existing employees who may have been employed for a number of years 
and are already at the top of the band.  

 
 
5. APPLICATION PROCESS 

 
5.1. It is the responsibility of the manager to identify when an R&R payment is 

required and to discuss this with the Principal HR Officer who will assist the 
manager to put a case forward for approval by the Head of HR, by following 
the procedure detailed below. 
 

5.2. A key requirement of this procedure is that R&R payments will only be 
considered once other ways of improving recruitment and retention 
have been exhausted and market pay is shown to be the main issue. 

 
5.3. When gathering evidence to support an R&R payment application, it is 

important to take into account all aspects of an employee’s pay and benefits 
package, for example: 

 

 Work life balance/Flexible working arrangements. 

 Annual leave entitlement plus bank holidays. 

 Pension Fund including employers % contribution. 

 Other allowances paid in that role. 

 Access to Learning and Development opportunities. 

 Career progression opportunities. 
 
5.4. It will need to be noted within the application how the details of the payment 

have been determined and any supporting evidence should be provided for 
comparison. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

6. STAGE 1: INVESTIGATING RECRUITMENT AND/OR RETENTION 
PROBLEMS 

 
6.1. Where recruitment and/or retention problems have been experienced, or 

there is significant evidence that this will be the case, the manager should 
investigate the causes and record the findings as this will form the business 
case for an R&R payment.   
 

6.2. In order to establish that a problem exists, it is useful to consider the 
following criteria: 
 

 Has there been failed recruitment activities, i.e. the post has been 
advertised at the existing salary and has failed to attract suitable 
candidates?  
 
Ensure that advice has been sought from the Human Resources to 
ensure that the post was advertised in the right place and at the right 
time, that the job title is reflective of similar roles within the market place, 
that the full benefits package including relocation where appropriate has 
been advertised, etc. 

 

 Is there a local or national shortage of this particular skill/knowledge/ 
expertise? 
 
Evidence will be required to show this is a national or local problem, for 
the business case to apply for a recruitment/retention payment. If this is 
the case, the service will also need to think about medium and short 
term plans to manage this situation, potentially having training roles to 
help with succession planning over the longer term.  
 

 Is there high labour turnover within a particular area, or a number of 
resignations within a short period of time? 
 
It may be useful to look at exit interviews to see if there is are any 
common themes being raised and consider how these can be 
addressed for the remaining team members to prevent further 
resignations. 

 
6.3. Where, as a result of this investigation, it is established that: 
 

 no problems with the advertising or recruitment process can be 
identified, 
Or 

 evidence suggests that the main reason for staff leaving is for more pay 
(other than as part of the normal career/personal development process), 
Or 

 strong evidence exists to suggest that such problems are likely to arise, 
 

the manager in conjunction with the Section Head should consider whether 
any improvements can be achieved by offering or making applicants more 
aware of non-pay benefits (e.g. pension scheme including employer’s 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

contributions, training and career development opportunities, facilities, 
access to a range of policies that support work-life balance) prior to making 
an application for an R&R payment. 
 

6.4. If non-pay approaches are not appropriate or have proved ineffective and 
the evidence suggests that the normal reward package offered may be 
uncompetitive, the manager should discuss this with the Principal HR 
Officer. Investigation and analysis of relevant external pay data will then be 
undertaken by Human Resources in order to determine whether an R&R 
payment might be appropriate. 

 
 
7. STAGE 2: ANALYSING THE MARKET DATA 

 
7.1. The manager via their Section Head and in conjunction with Human 

Resources are responsible for identifying and analysing an appropriate and 
relevant sample of labour market pay data in order to establish whether 
justification exists for an R&R payment. The sources from which this data is 
gathered will vary depending on what is relevant for the particular post, 
however, data from a minimum of two reliable sources will usually be 
required and will typically be: 

 

 regional LA pay data for LA only posts, 

 regional LA pay data and relevant (e.g. professional body) private sector 
pay data again for our region and/or, 

 national LA pay data and relevant private sector pay data, particularly if 
there is a local skill shortage, 

 advertisements and information from the local labour market via 
recruitment agencies for comparable roles. 

 
7.2. If the evidence indicates that the market rate is equal to or lower than the 

value of the total reward package offered by the Council, an R&R payment 
will not be appropriate and the Principal HR Officer will work with the 
manager to identify other underlying recruitment or retention problems and 
the most appropriate ways of overcoming these. 

 
7.3. Where market pay investigations have established evidence to suggest that 

the market pay rate is significantly higher than the reward package offered 
by the Council, the manager (with approval from the Section Head) should 
put together a business case detailing the findings for approval by the Head 
of HR. In normal circumstances, the level of R&R payment will be no more 
than the average market rates.  

 
 
8. STAGE 3: FORMAL CONSIDERATION OF THE CASE 

 
8.1. Where evidence established at Stages 1 and 2 of this procedure indicate 

that an R&R payment may be a reasonable and proportionate response to 
recruitment and retention difficulties, the resulting recommendations will be 
formally considered by the Head of HR who will decide whether a payment 
may be approved. If no agreement can be reached then the P&O Board will 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

make the final decision. The decision will be recorded in writing and the 
outcome emailed to the relevant manager to manage the appropriate 
course of action.   
 

8.2. Human Resources will retain a record of all cases that have been 
considered including a rationale of why applications have been approved or 
refused.  This will ensure the evidence is available to meet any equal pay 
challenge. 
 

8.3. Should a recommendation be approved, an R&R payment will be 
established within the service area. This may include (as set out in 
paragraphs 3.1 – 3.4), 

 

 one off lump sum payment; 

 on-going payments in addition to salary 
Or, 

 a combination of a lump sum and monthly payments, 
 
8.4. The total of any R&R agreement will not normally exceed 30% of the basic 

salary. However, if the market value of the job role dictates, the R&R 
payment should exceed 30%; this must be highlighted to the Head of HR 
and the Deputy Chief Executive.  
 

8.5. All employees entitled to benefit from an R&R payment will be provided with 
a written statement detailing the amount and how this will be paid. If there is 
a lump sum payment, the individual will be required to sign an agreement. 

 
8.6. Main terms and conditions will identify payments made under the R&R 

scheme as a distinct and separate element of pay, specifying the duration 
of the payment. Payments will be paid through the normal payroll system, 
but will be identified separately from the base salary in documentation and 
records, including payslips. 

 
8.7. R&R payments will be subject to National Insurance, PAYE income tax and 

in the case of ongoing payments, pension deductions. Payments will be 
taken into consideration in the calculation of all statutory entitlements such 
as sickness, maternity, adoption, paternity leave and redundancy. 

 
8.8. Employees in receipt of an R&R payment will continue to progress 

incrementally up the normal pay scale for their grade and receive relevant 
inflationary pay awards on that scale. Pay increases under the standard pay 
and grading arrangements will apply whenever the R&R payment is 
reviewed. 

 
 
9. REVIEW STAGE  

 
9.1. Human Resources will review R&R Payments at least every two years and 

will highlight any areas of concern with the Principal HR Officer who will 
address the situation with the relevant Section Head.  
 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Recruitment and Retention Policy January 2019 

HR Policy 

9.2. If the evidence shows that the R&R payment being made is out of line with 
the labour market, the Principal HR Officer will discuss this with the relevant 
manager to consider whether the payment should be preserved, varied or 
withdrawn. 

 
9.3. Where the outcome of the review is that the payment will be increased to 

reflect the current market conditions, this will take effect in the month 
following the review date. 
 

9.4. Where the outcome of the review is that the payment is to be reduced or 
withdrawn, the employee(s) concerned will be given contractual notice of 
the change, after which time the reduction/withdrawal will take effect. 

 
9.5. Where an R&R payment has been made on appointment to attract a 

candidate from another employer the payment will be reviewed in line with 
this policy. The candidate will be made aware at the offer stage of the terms 
relating to the R&R payment and any future review period. 

 
9.6. Where the research shows that the R&R payment is at the correct amount 

to reflect the labour market, no changes will be made and the arrangement 
will continue, until the next review date. 

 
 
10. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY MONITORING 

 
10.1. It is important to note that there is a danger of creating inequality within the 

workplace when making R&R payments. Therefore the Council will 
undertake regular equalities monitoring through regular equal pay audits 
including gender monitoring of the jobs in receipt of such payments. 
 

10.2. Under Equal Pay legislation, the Council must justify using R&R payments 
by showing that there is a real skills shortage and that no other option could 
have been used to attract or retain staff. 

 
10.3. The Council must also prove that the amount of the payment is proportional 

to the additional amount needed to secure the skills needed. For example, 
£5000 would not be justified if £500 would have attracted the level of skill 
and qualification required. 

 
 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: Policy and Organisation Board
Date of Meeting: 20th March 2019
Title: 2019 Pay Award
Author: Head of Human Resources
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

Gosport Borough Council (GBC) created its own local pay agreement in 2005. 
This report seeks Members approval, to enable GBC to apply the second year of 
the National Joint Council (NJC) pay award.  In order for this to take effect, it is 
required to step away from the local pay arrangements and remove a number of 
spinal column points. 

Recommendation

It is recommended that GBC continues to follow the principals of the NJC and 
continues to negotiate with Unison on changes to the 2005 local pay agreement. 

1 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

The 2019 NJC pay award is the second year of a two year pay deal. As 
part of the second year pay deal, the NJC negotiated that a 2% 
differential between Spinal Column Point (SCP) up to the new NJC 
SCP22. In order to achieve this a number of SCP have been removed 
from the NJC pay scale.

 GBC has previously applied all NJC pay awards. Therefore, it was 
assumed that GBC followed the NJC pay scales in its entirety. However, 
it has come to light that in 2005, after negotiations with unions, that each 
grade would consist of 4 SCP. It is at this point that GBC formed its own 
local pay agreement. Whilst the changes made for the 2019 pay award 
will follow the principals of the NJC, it will alter the local pay agreement. 
Therefore initial consultation and negotiations have commenced with 
Unison.

This is further compounded by the NJC who state that councils should 
enter into local negotiations. It would appear where an organisation 
follows the NJC pay scales exactly, unions are content with this change 
happening automatically. Where there are local pay agreements, unions 
in particular, unison are looking in depth at the pay structure to identify if 
there are grounds for its members to pursue equal pay claims against 

Agenda Item 8



2

1.4
the councils.

This change in pay structure does not result in an equal pay risk but 
simply moves GBC away from the 2005 local pay agreement. 

2 Report

2.1

2.2

2.3

In order for GBC pay structure (appendix 1) to comply the NJC 2019 pay 
award, it will need to reduce the number of increments in the following 
grades.

Grade 
Name

Number of SCP's 
in 2018

Number 
of SCP's 
in 2019

Affected Employees

Grade 1 3 2

Cleaners - on new scp 
1 and Countryside 

Warden on new scp 2 
both will remain on a 

fixed point.

Grade 2 4 3
Currently no 

employees on this 
Grade – no impact 

Grade 3 4 2
Employees will move 

to the new scps 
without any detriment

All other grades retain four SCP and therefore continue to comply with 
the 2005 local pay agreement. SCP's within GBC's proposed pay 
structure are equivalent or higher than the NJC, this difference is likely to 
be due to the 2005 local pay agreement.

If GBC were to keep to the principals of the 2005 local pay agreement 
but implement its own pay award, GBC would need to enter into 
separate negotiations with the Trade Unions. These negotiations are 
unlikely to be resolved prior to April 2019. 

3 Risk Assessment

3.1  There is no equal pay claim risk if Members agreed to change the pay 
scale to accommodate the 2019 NJC pay award

4 Conclusion

4.1

4.2

In order that GBC is able to pay the 2019 NJC pay award, it must step 
away from the principals of the 2005 local pay agreement. 

If GBC, continued with its local pay agreement but wished to implement 
a pay award it would need to start negotiations with the unions. 



3

Financial Services comments: Allowance has been made within the 
Councils approved budget for 2019/20 
for these proposed changes.

Legal Services comments: None
Crime and Disorder: None
Equality and Diversity: Maintaining a fair and transparent pay 

structure helps to ensure equality in the 
treatment of staff

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

There are no service plan implications

Corporate Plan: None required for the purpose of this 
report.

Risk Assessment: Necessary to ensure compliance with the 
national pay award.

Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ New Pay Scale
Report author/ Lead Officer: Rochelle Kneller



This page is intentionally left blank



GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL LOCAL GOVERNMENT PAY SCALES 2019
SCP 01/04/2018 NEW GBC SCP 01/04/2019

Apprentices
A £15,314 A £15,621
B £15,582 B £15,894
C £15,986 C £16,306

GRADE 1
6 £16,394

1 £17,364
7 £16,495
8 £16,649 2 £17,711

GRADE 2

9 £16,755 2 £17,711
10 £16,917 3 £18,065
11 £17,058

4 £18,426
12 £17,391

GRADE 3

13 £17,681
5 £18,795

14 £17,972
15 £18,319

6 £19,171
16 £18,672

GRADE 4

17 £18,870 7 £19,554
18 £19,446 8 £19,945
19 £19,819 9 £20,344
20 £20,541 10 £21,166

GRADE 5

21 £21,073 11 £21,589
22 £21,693 12 £22,462
23 £22,401 13 £22,911
24 £23,111 14 £23,836

GRADE 6

25 £23,866 15 £24,799
26 £24,657 16 £25,295
27 £25,463 17 £26,317
28 £26,470 18 £26,999

GRADE 7

29 £27,358 19 £27,905
30 £28,490 20 £29,060
31 £29,624 21 £30,217
32 £30,756 22 £31,371

GRADE 8

33 £31,401 23 £32,029
34 £32,984 24 £33,644
35 £34,569 25 £35,261
36 £36,153 26 £36,876

GRADE 9

37 £37,107 27 £37,849
38 £38,357 28 £39,124
39 £39,607 29 £40,399
40 £40,858 30 £41,675

GRADE 10

41 £41,846 31 £42,683
42 £42,806 32 £43,662
43 £43,757 33 £44,632
44 £44,697 34 £45,591

GRADE 11

45 £45,636 35 £46,549
46 £46,577 36 £47,509
47 £47,516 37 £48,467
48 £48,455 38 £49,425

GRADE 12

49 £49,421 39 £50,410
50 £50,429 40 £51,438
51 £51,436 41 £52,465
52 £52,444 42 £53,493

GRADE 13

53 £53,492 43 £54,562
54 £55,097 44 £56,199
55 £56,750 45 £57,885
56 £58,452 46 £59,622

GRADE 14

57 £60,206 47 £61,411
58 £62,012 48 £63,253
59 £63,872 49 £65,150
60 £65,788 50 £67,104



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Board/Committee: P&O BOARD
Date of Meeting: 20TH MARCH 2019
Title: Retirement Awards
Author: Head of Payroll
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

The council’s Long Service Awards Policy recognises staff who are made 
redundant or retire with 20 or more years’ service.  Staff receive an engraved 
medallion and a gift of their choice to the value of £15 for each completed year of 
service.  The policy needs to be reviewed due to the fact that these awards do not 
meet the HM Revenue and Customs criteria for exemption from a tax charge.

It is proposed that we dispense with the current arrangement and replace it with a 
simple payroll payment for the reasons set out below. 

Recommendation

It is recommended that with immediate effect, employees who have completed a 
minimum of 20 years’ service and are made redundant or retire shall receive a 
payment through the payroll system to the value of £15 for each completed year of 
service.  The payment will be subject to statutory deductions in accordance with 
HMRC regulations. 

1 Background

1.1 The council currently provide a retirement/redundancy gift for staff who 
have completed more than 20 years’ service with Gosport Borough 
Council.

1.2 The current policy which is attached as Appendix A, specifies that along 
with the engraved medallion, staff will receive a gift of their choice to 
the value of £15 for each completed year of service.

1.3 The gift or gifts (a benefit in kind) are currently purchased in advance 
and reimbursement is made on the production of receipts.

2 Report

2.1 The Long Service Awards Policy (Appendix A) needs to be reviewed 
and amended due to the fact that these awards do not meet the HM 
Revenue and Customs (HMRC) criteria for exemption from a tax 
charge. This means that the retirement gifts in future must be subject to 
statutory deductions. Failure to make this change will result in non-
compliance and the council will face HMRC penalties.  

2.2 The tax charge could be levied through the benefit in kind system but 
this process adds complexity to the administrative process for both the 

Agenda Item 9



2

council and member of staff. This is because the council is required to 
produce separate tax forms for staff and HMRC, as well as having to 
deal with the reconciliation and re-imbursement of the gifts purchased 
The member of staff is then faced with having a tax demand on the 
benefit but this is often not issued by HMRC for up to a year after 
receiving the gift. For these reasons, it is recommended that we no 
longer process the awards through the current process. 

2.3 The simplest and most efficient way to process these awards is through 
the payroll system. This means that the member of staff will receive the 
benefit of the award on their final payslip from the council and will not 
suffer a hidden tax charge many months down the line.  It also means 
that the council will not need to produce any tax forms.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1    The award of £15 for each completed year of service will be subject to    
statutory deductions and therefore will reduce the monetary value of the 
award. However it does not seem appropriate to inflate the value of the 
award as this would effectively mean that the council was paying the tax 
liability of the member of staff.

3.2 In future the awards must be subjected to statutory deductions or the 
council will face fines and penalties from HMRC.

4 Conclusion

4.1    The current scheme is not compliant with HMRC regulations and as 
such cannot continue. This provides an opportunity to streamline the 
administration of these awards and the proposal above ensures HMRC 
compliance as well as delivering an efficient process to dispense with 
the payments 

Financial Services 
comments:

There are no additional costs to the Council 
arising from the reports recommendation

Legal Services comments: None
Crime and Disorder: None
Equality and Diversity: No Impact
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

None

Corporate Plan: None
Risk Assessment: Actual monetary value of award to the employee 

reduced
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ Long Service Awards Policy



3

Report author/ Lead Officer: Shaun Tetley



This page is intentionally left blank



 
HR Policy 

 
 

 
Contents: 
 
Introduction 
Scheme 1 - For staff employed prior to the implementation date of the new scheme 
Scheme 2 - For staff employed post  implementation date of the new scheme 
Gifts 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ID HR 009 

Last Review Date 1 September 2018 

Next Review Date September 2020 

 
Approval 
 

P & O Board 

Policy Owner HR 

Policy Author Anna Buxcey 

Advice & 
Guidance Please contact Human Resources 

Location 
 
Infonet 
 

Related 
Documents  

Scope This policy applies to all employees in Gosport Borough Council. 

LONG SERVICE 
 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Long Service  September 2018 

HR Policy 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1. The Council recognises the value of loyalty, hard work and commitment 
from long serving employees, and rewards such service through long 
service awards.  
 

1.2. A new scheme introduced in 2018 has resulted in 2 schemes running 
parallel. 

 
Scheme 1: For staff employed prior to the implementation date of the new 
scheme 

 
Scheme 2: For staff employed post implementation date of the new scheme 

 
1.3. Scheme 1 will be administered in accordance with HMRC tax rules and will 

be taxable.  Although an employee will receive an award in December, the 
HMRC will be notified in the following tax year and a tax form P11D will be 
issued.  HMRC will collect the tax by adjusting the employee tax code.  For 
most employees the tax change will be calculated at 20% of the value of the 
award (or 40% for higher rate taxpayers). The employee will be sent a letter 
informing them of the award and will state the tax implications. 
 

1.4. Scheme 2 is not taxable. 
 

1.5. If staff leave after the new scheme is implemented, any return to 
employment with Gosport Borough Council will mean the new scheme 
applies. 

 
 
2. SCHEME 1 - FOR STAFF EMPLOYED PRIOR TO THE 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE OF THE NEW SCHEME 
 

2.1. The service may be continuous or aggregated*. 
 

2.2. Fifteen Years’ Service 
 

Employees who have completed a total of 15 years’ service with Gosport 
Borough Council will be awarded gift vouchers to the sum of £50 together 
with a china mug with the Borough crest. 

 
2.3. Twenty Years’ Service 

 
Employees who have completed a total of 20 years’ service with Gosport 
Borough Council will be awarded gift vouchers to the sum of £100 together 
with a Borough pen. 

 
2.4. Twenty-Five Years’ Service 

 
Employees who have completed a total of 25 years’ service with Gosport 
Borough Council will be awarded gift vouchers to the sum of £125.  In 
addition, they will be permitted – on a “one-off” basis – one week’s leave to 
be taken during the year in which the 25 years’ service is attained.  This 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Long Service  September 2018 

HR Policy 

week’s leave may not be carried forward, other than in very exceptional 
circumstances with the approval of the Section Head. 
 

2.5. Thirty Years’ Service 
 

Employees who have completed a total of 30 years’ service with Gosport 
Borough Council will be awarded gift vouchers in the sum of £175.  In 
addition, they will be permitted – on a “one-off” basis – one week’s leave to 
be taken during the year in which the 30 years’ service is attained.  This 
week’s leave may not be carried forward, other than in very exceptional 
circumstances with the approval of the Section Head. 

 
2.6. Thirty-Five Years’ Service 

 
Employees who have completed a total of 35 years’ service with Gosport 
Borough Council will be awarded gift vouchers in the sum of £250.  In 
addition, they will be permitted – on a “one-off” basis – one week’s leave to 
be taken during the year in which the 35 years’ service is attained.  This 
week’s leave may not be carried forward, other than in very exceptional 
circumstances with the approval of the Section Head. 

 
2.7. Voluntarily leaving after Twenty Years’ (or more) Service 

 
Employees who voluntarily leave the Council’s employment having 
completed a minimum of 20 years’ service shall receive an engraved 
medallion. 
 

2.8. Retirement or Redundancy after Twenty Years’ (or more) Service 
 
Employees who, at the time of their retirement (or redundancy) from 
Gosport Borough Council, have completed a minimum of 20 years’ service  
with the Council, shall receive an engraved medallion and a gift of their 
choice to the value of £15 for each completed year of service. 

 
2.9. *Where an employee has left/retired/been made redundant and received 

the leaving gift in recognition of their service, and then returns to work for 
the Gosport Borough Council, they will not be entitled to add the previous 
service for the purposes of this agreement. The commencement date for 
the accrual of long service for the purposes of this agreement in those 
circumstances will be the date of return to the Council following their 
leaving/retirement. 

 
 
3. SCHEME 2 - FOR STAFF EMPLOYED POST IMPLEMENTATION DATE 

OF THE NEW SCHEME  
 

3.1. Only continuous service with Gosport Borough Council is recognised. 
Aggregated service is not recognised.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

[Policy Title – Version Number] 

Long Service  September 2018 

HR Policy 

3.2. Twenty Years’ Service 
 

Employees who have completed a total of 20 years’ continuous service with 
Gosport Borough Council will be awarded gift vouchers to the sum of £100 
together with a Borough pen. 

 
3.3. Thirty Years’ Service 

 
Employees who have completed a total of 30 years’ continuous service with 
Gosport Borough Council will be awarded gift vouchers to the sum of £175.  
In addition, they will be permitted – on a “one-off” basis – one week’s leave 
to be taken during the year in which the 30 years’ service is attained.  This 
week’s leave may not be carried forward, other than in very exceptional 
circumstances with the approval of the Section Head. 

 
3.4. Leaving (voluntarily or through redundancy) after Twenty Years’ (or 

more) Service 
 
Employees who leave (voluntarily or through redundancy) the Council’s 
employment having completed a minimum of 20 years’ service shall receive 
an engraved medallion. 
 

3.5. Retirement after Twenty Years’ (or more) Service 
 

Employees who, at the time of their retirement from Gosport Borough 
Council, have completed a minimum of 20 years’ continuous service with 
the Council, shall receive an engraved medallion and a gift of their choice to 
the value of £15 for each completed year of service. 

 
 
4. GIFTS 

 
4.1. The gift amount will be kept under review, taking into account inflation. 

 
4.2. The gift voucher is a multi-retailer gift voucher. 
 
 


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the board held on 5 February 2019
	6 CROSS REFERENCE FROM THE STANDARDS AND <br/>GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE: EY - AUDIT PLAN 2018/19<br/>
	minute extract
	External Audit - 2018-19 Audit Planning Report

	7 Proposed Recruitment and Retention Policy
	Draft Gosport Recruitment and Retention Policy 12 Dec 18

	8 2019 Pay Award
	Appendix 1 - 2019 Pay Award

	9 Long Service Policy
	Long Service Policy


